
 
 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Riverdale City Planning Commission held 
Wednesday, September 14, 2011 at 6:34 p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 4600 South Weber 
River Drive. 
 
Members Present:       Brent Ellis, Acting Chairman  

Bart Stevens, Commissioner  
Steve Hilton, Commissioner 
David Gailey, Commissioner  

Present via phone: Michael Staten, Commissioner 
 

Members Excused:     Blair Jones, Commissioner  
Braden Mitchell, Chairman 

 
Others Present:  Randy Daily, Community Development Director, Ember Herrick, City Recorder 
and eight members of the public.   
 
A.   Welcome & Roll Call  
Acting Chairman Ellis welcomed everyone to the meeting and stated for the record four 
members were physically present with Commissioner Staten joining the meeting via phone and 
Commissioners Jones and Chairman Mitchell excused.   
 
B.   Open Communications  
None. 
 
C.   Presentations and Reports  
Community Development Director Randy Daily said there was nothing new on the Community 
Development Report not discussed in the earlier work session.  He asked for any questions and 
there were none.   
 
D.   Consent Items  
1. Approval of meeting minutes from:  
 August 23, 2011 Work Session 
 August 23, 2011 Planning Commission  
 
Acting Chairman Ellis asked for any changes or corrections to the previous meeting minutes and 
none were noted.   
 

Motion:   Commissioner Hilton moved to approve the consent items.  Commissioner 
Stevens seconded the motion  

 
    Call the Question:    
    The motion passed unanimously. 
 
E. Action Items 
1. Discussion of concept proposal for the Hayward Business Park property located at 1500 

west 5175 south to develop the property residentially with owner occupied town homes.     



Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   2                                                                                   September 14, 2011  

Acting Chairman Ellis told the petitioner that the Commission had reviewed the townhomes 
proposal and was interested in hearing more about what type of zoning change they plan to 
request for their project.  Brad Wilson stated that he is president and one of two owners of 
Destination Homes responsible for building between 15,000 and 16,000 homes in the last 
decade.  Mr. Wilson said the land where his company is interested in building townhomes is 
currently owned by a bank.  He said the concept design included in the packet was created by a 
company called Urban Design out of Philadelphia that designed the Daybreak community in 
South Jordan near Kennecott.  According to Mr. Wilson, each proposed unit would have a two 
car garage, with 120 parking spaces inside and 35 guest parking spaces and street parking 
available too.  He said the concept proposes three open space areas and the addition of traffic 
calming measures.  According to Mr. Wilson, their demographic is young married or single 
professionals and he showed the Commission images from a similar project currently under 
construction in Kaysville.   

Mr. Wilson said the townhomes would be for sale, not rent, and suggested including an anti-
speculation clause with financial penalties to prevent buyers from flipping the townhomes.  He 
said a company called FCS manages the majority of Destination Homes properties overseeing 
garbage and snow removal and landscaping.   

Commissioner Staten said he works as a civil engineer and has designed similar developments 
and he expressed concern about short driveways and unsightly garbage cans in alleyways.  He 
suggested a fieldtrip to a nearby Destination Homes development so that the Commission can 
better visualize the layout of the proposal.  Mr. Wilson said the homeowner bylaws require 
owners to store their garbage cans inside their garages or in an enclosure and he said that at the 
Daybreak development where 400 homes have been constructed the parking of cars in alleyways 
haven’t been a problem.  According to Mr. Wilson, having two car garages in every home 
prevents most residents from even parking their cars outside.   

Commissioner Gailey asked if Mr. Wilson had built in an area adjacent to a commercial 
development in the past and if so, what barriers his company had constructed as a buffer.  Mr. 
Wilson said a privacy fence had satisfied residents in the past.  Commissioner Stevens asked 
about a safe play area for children and the development’s marketability as new commercial 
buildings are constructed on the adjacent properties.  Mr. Wilson said the traffic calming 
measures and strategic placement of play areas are designed to keep residents safe.  He said that 
the Larry Miller car dealership and Comcast building are already in existence so he is confident 
residents will know they are buying a home next to a commercial district before they move in.  
Mr. Wilson said he views his proposed townhome development as a good way to maintain the 
existing property values of the residential area bordering the land he is interested in.  He added 
that the average cost of the homes will be between $140-180,000 and said there are no plans to 
put in a swimming pool.   

Commissioner Hilton asked if Mr. Wilson was interested in expanding his development in 
Riverdale in the future and Mr. Wilson indicated that he was not.  Commissioner Hilton asked if 
the FCS management company used by Destination Homes has homeowner covenants restricting 
rental of the properties.  Mr. Wilson said that he had contacted his attorney who advised him that 
imposing such a restriction on a property owner would be illegal.  He said they can only 
disincentive renting and ensure that renters are still required to comply with all the homeowner 
covenants.   

Commissioner Stevens said he is reluctant to change the zone from commercial to residential 
because he would still love to see it become a business park.  Mr. Daily said to date there has not 



Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   3                                                                                   September 14, 2011  

been any interest in a business park other than Mr. Hayward and now the bank has repossessed 
the property and the petition before the Planning Commission is to allow Destination Homes to 
build townhomes on the land.  He said he is confident that the alleyway concerns can be resolved 
and he reminded the Planning Commission that they have the power to not allow any 
commercial business in the future on the adjacent properties that would be a nuisance to the 
townhome residents.   

Mr. Daily asked for consensus from the Planning Commission on whether or not they 
would like to see a rezone request from the petitioner as the next step in moving their 
townhomes proposal forward.   

Roll Call Vote:  Commissioner Hilton, aye; Commissioner Gailey, aye; Commissioner 
Staten, aye; Commissioner Stevens, nay; and Acting Chairman Ellis, aye.  The motion 
passed with four in favor and one opposed. 

Acting Chairman Ellis thanked Mr. Wilson for coming to explain his proposal and answer the 
Commission’s questions.  He encouraged him to work with Mr. Daily on his rezone request and 
said that once it is ready the Commission will evaluate it at a subsequent meeting   

2. Consideration of amending the final site plan for the Combe Farms PRUD to remove 
guest parking from two locations and landscape those areas.   

Mr. Daily said the final site plan for Combe Farms was developed under the current PRUD 
ordinance making the proposed change from visitor parking to landscaping subject to the 
Planning Commission’s review.  According to Mr. Daily this request will not alter the minimum 
parking requirements for the development and visitor parking isn’t specified in the PRUD 
ordinance but is left to the Planning Commission’s discretion. 

Petitioner Brad Frost of Ovation Homes which is responsible for the construction of Combe 
Farms told the Commission the change will be easier for the Homeowners Association (HOA) 
once they are responsible for maintaining the property next month in October.  He said six 
homes are currently under construction with ten lots still for sale.  According to Mr. Frost, 
landscaping is cheaper to maintain then paving and fewer visitor parking spaces will prevent 
RVs, trailers, and abandoned vehicles from being left in the parking lot until they are towed 
away at the HOA’s expense.  Commissioner Hilton asked if there have been parking problems 
with nuisance vehicles in the past or if this is just a cost-cutting measure.  Mr. Frost said the 
proposed site plan change from parking to landscaping will address three issues, first the 
abandoned vehicles in the visitor parking stalls, second as a cost-saving measure for residents, 
and third to beautiful the areas in question that aren’t being utilized as parking. 

Commissioner Stevens said he would like to hear from the concerned residents in the gallery 
who were attending tonight’s meeting to get their input on the proposal.  Commissioner Hilton 
asked if there was a way the residents could speak at this time and Mr. Daily suggested that 
rather than hear from just five residents at tonight’s meeting, Mr. Frost could take a petition 
around to Combe Farms residents to get their input.   

Commissioner Stevens said the extra parking spaces could be used to pile snow in the winter and 
Mr. Frost said there is a dead end road to the east where the snow was designed to be stored.  
Commissioner Gailey said if the majority of the residents prefer landscaping to visitor parking he 
would be in favor of granting their request and amending the plan, especially where the asphalt 
hasn’t been poured yet.   



Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   4                                                                                   September 14, 2011  

  Motion:  Commissioner Hilton moved to forward with a favorable recommendation 
to the City Council the petitioner’s request to amend the final site plan for 
the Combe Farms PRUD to remove guest parking from two locations and 
landscape those areas, if it is accompanied by a petition signed by the 
majority of the residents in favor of the change.  Commissioner Staten 
seconded the motion.    

 Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Gailey, aye; Commissioner Staten, aye; 
Commissioner Stevens, nay; and Acting Chairman Ellis, aye; 
Commissioner Hilton, aye.  The motion passed with four in favor 
and one opposed. 

Commissioner Stevens said any residents who oppose amending the site plan should have their 
views included in the petition too and he stressed that an effort should be made to contact every 
homeowner.  Mr. Frost agreed to petition the development’s residents.   

3. Consideration of a subdivision/lot line adjustment for properties located at 1191 west 
4400 south (LOT 1) and the lot adjacent and directly west (LOT 2) to create new legal 
descriptions for each of the two lots.   
Mr. Daily said the property owner at 1191 west 4400 south is trying to sell an adjacent lot for a 
single family dwelling and is petitioning the Commission for a new legal description of the two 
properties.  He said the lot for sale has been granted a lot width variance from the City’s Appeal 
Authority Craig Call so that a single family dwelling can be built on the property.  Mr. Daily said 
the lot does meet all of the minimum lot size requirements.  Commissioner Stevens asked about 
the appeal process and Mr. Daily said Mr. Call is empowered by city ordinance as a land 
attorney to review the law and make variance determinations.  According to Mr. Daily, the Fuller 
variance request was granted because Mr. Call determined that the lot was conforming before 
Riverdale changed the lot width ordinance requirements.   

Petitioner Brett Fuller said the land had been owned by his parents until their death and was now 
in a family trust.  He said his sister, Riverdale resident Connie Fuller, is the main executor of that 
trust and she lives on Lot 1 and wishes the lot lines to have a new legal description so that the 
family can sell Lot 2 to a buyer with the intention that they build a single family dwelling.  
Commissioner Stevens asked if the property is zoned agricultural and Mr. Daily said the entire 
area is R2 residential and he pointed out the area on a large wall map in the room.   

  Motion:  Commissioner Hilton moved to approve the petitioner’s request for a 
subdivision/lot line adjustment for properties located at 1191 west 4400 
south (LOT 1) and the lot adjacent and directly west (LOT 2) to create 
new legal descriptions for each of the two lots.  Seconded by 
Commissioner Gailey.   

Call the Question: The motion passed unanimously. 
 

4. Discussion of proposed amendments to the General Plan, Goals and Objectives section, 
pages 26-29.   

Mr. Daily said the goals and objectives section of the General Plan is up for discussion tonight.  
He said the Commission has now received suggestions from the city administrator, police, fire 
and public works department to consider and he added that once the group has worked out the 
final language, a public hearing will be set to present the proposed changes to the public and get 



Riverdale City Planning Commission                                                   5                                                                                   September 14, 2011  

their feedback.  Commissioner Hilton asked if this item could be tabled until the next meeting 
when all the commissioners are present to give the group time to review the suggestions from the 
department heads received during tonight’s work session.  Mr. Daily said the item could be 
postponed and staff could do a final markup of the proposed changes with everyone’s 
suggestions referenced in color so that they will be prepared to discuss changes at the next 
meeting.   
 
Commissioner Hilton asked Mr. Daily for a plan on how to tackle updating the General Plan and 
Mr. Daily said he recommended that the Planning Commission just review it a section at a time.  
He said some sections will be easy and other will take more time and the use of city resources 
and in some cases state involvement.  Commissioner Stevens said he didn’t attend the Strategic 
Planning meeting where the General Plan was scheduled to be discussed out of protest, but 
would like to see it updated.  Mr. Daily said updating the General Plan in pieces will also allow 
for public input as the people whose property could be affected by the changes will have an 
opportunity to tend these public meetings and speak at the public hearings.   
 
Commissioner Hilton suggested the Planning Commission address the sections of highest 
priority first and Commissioner Staten suggested the Commission look at the area where the 
proposed townhomes and Aunt Nancy’s may be built next to address zoning issues ahead of 
further development in the area.  Mr. Daily said the area where the townhomes are proposed will 
be recommended as a transitional residential zone based on the direction he received by 
consensus at the joint Planning Commission meeting on August 30, 2011.  According to Mr. 
Daily, the General Plan map on the city website will also reflect this zoning recommendation 
change.  Mr. Daily updated the Commission on the Aunt Nancy’s development stating that the 
Council will consideration a request to approve the final site plan without requiring a zone 
change before construction begins at their next meeting.   
 
Acting Chairman Ellis asked for consensus from the Planning Commission to postpone 
discussion of proposed amendments to the General Plan, Goals and Objectives section, 
pages 26-29 until the next meeting on September 27, 2011 when more members of the 
Commission can be present.  Consensus was reached.   
 
F.   Discretionary Items 
Commissioner Gailey asked about rental zone requirements requiring that a property owner live 
within a certain distance of their rental property and Mr. Daily said a former city government had 
considered but never adopted such an ordinance, instead compromising by creating an R1-8 
zone.  There were no additional comments or questions.   
 
     Motion: There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission,  
                  Commissioner Gailey moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner   
                    Hilton seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  The meeting  
                   adjourned at 8:04 p.m.   
 
Approved:  September 27, 2011           Attest:  
 
________________________________                                      __________________________  
Brent Ellis, Acting Chairman                        Ember Herrick, City Recorder  


